MINUTES
BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS
CASE A-237

Mr. Michael Joseck, Vice Chair of the Board, called the hearing to order at 7:00 p.m. The
following Board Members were present: Mr. Michael Joseck, Ms. Tracy McCoy, and Mrs.
Marlene Duff. Mrs. Vickie Watts was absent. Staff members present were: Town Manager/Zoning
Administrator Jim Roark and Assistant Zoning Administrator Elizabeth Dietrich.

Guests present: Chris Coil, Grayson Coil, Katie Coil, Nichole Haines
CASE A-237

On May 8, 2025, the Board of Zoning Appeals heard testimony and received evidence concerning
Case A-237, a request by Hampstead Development, LLC for approval of a Conditional Use of a
restaurant in the Local Business District at 1365 N. Main Street.

Roll Call was completed, and Mr. Joseck presented the case by reading the Zoning Administrator’s
Statement. The statement said that the Applicant was Hampstead Development, LLC and that the
Applicant’s tenant intends to operate a restaurant, “Little G’s Diner”, on the property at 1365 N.
Main Street. The property was previously used as a diner (“The Hampstead Diner”) but has been
vacant for several years. The property is served by public water and sewer. The statement also said
that if the Board of Zoning Appeals grants this Conditional Use, then the installed signage will
need to be reviewed and approved by the Hampstead Planning and Zoning Commission as the
property is in the Main Street Revitalization District. The statement concluded by stating that there
is nothing in the Town Code to prohibit this Conditional Use, and it was the recommendation of
the Zoning Administrator and Assistant Zoning Administrator to defer to the Board’s judgment
for the case decision.

Mrs. Dietrich read the Written Record of the hearing. The Written Record stated that the Town
was notified of an application to the Board of Zoning Appeals on April 2, 2025. Public Notice of
the hearing was completed in accordance with Town Code. Notification letters were sent to all
adjoining properties. The hearing was advertised in the Carroll County Times on April 16 and
April 23", The property was posted with a Public Notice sign per Code requirements on April 16,
2025. There were no written comments received by the Town to include in the Written Record.
This concluded the Written Record.

The Applicant’s Presentation was begun by Nichole Haines, of Utz Property Management,
representing Hampstead Development, LLC. Mrs. Haines stated that the Applicant’s request was
for approval of a Conditional Use of a restaurant in the BL Local Business District in Unit B of
1365 N. Main Street. She stayed at the podium to answer questions from the Board. Ms. McCoy
asked what business was in Unit A of 1365 N. Main Steet. Mrs. Haines said that it was the Soap
Opera laundromat, and that Unit C was Goose Ridge Soaps. Ms. McCoy asked about the capacity
of the restaurant, and Ms. McCoy said that it would be determined when they get to the restaurant
phase of the project. Mrs. Haines continued by saying that Carroll County would come inspect the
facility as they moved closer to finalizing the seating layout, and that they would determine the
number. Ms. McCoy asked if there was an estimated capacity, and Mrs. Haines said 51, based on
the square footage. Mr. Roark added that the number would be determined by the Fire Marshal.

1



Mr. Joseck asked Mrs. Haines if he was aware of the occupancy for The Hamstead Diner, and Mrs.
Haines said, unfortunately, the diner was phasing out in 2018 when they took over so she didn’t
have any direct communication with The Hampstead Diner. She said she did not have any records
of what was posted for the occupancy number. Ms. McCoy inquired about the proposed hours of
operation for the diner, and Mrs. Haines said 6:00am to 3:00pm, six days a week. Mrs. Haines
continued to answer questions from the Board and give testimony concerning parking. Parking in
the lot would be available for customers and overflow parking would be at the church, except for
Sundays and Saturday evenings. Mr. Roark asked if the day off would be Sunday, and Mr. Chris
Coil, of Little G’s Diner, the tenant, said it would be Monday. Ms. McCoy asked why they couldn’t
use the church for overflow parking on Saturdays and Mrs. Haines said she thought they had
festivities/activities at that time, or possibly evening mass. The Board had no additional questions.

Mr. Joseck opened the Public Comment period of the hearing. There was no public comment.
Mr. Joseck concluded the Public Comment period of the hearing.
There was no Applicant’s Rebuttal.

Mr. Joseck opened the Board Deliberation. Ms. McCoy said she did not have items to discuss
concerning the case. Mrs. Duff said that there could be issues with the use if the property had not
already been used as a restaurant. She said that the Board needed to evaluate whether granting the
appeal would be injurious to the neighborhood, and she did not think that it would. Mrs. Duff
continued by saying that she felt it would be beneficial to the community. Mr. Joseck continued
Deliberation by saying he agreed, and that they were just proposing a restaurant on a property that
had previously been a restaurant, and that it would not pose any risk to the surrounding residents
or the community at large. He noted that they’d been taking measures to work with the local church
regarding parking. Mrs. Duff asked if the tenant had been working with Carroll County on some
permitting issues. Mrs. Haines said that she typically does residential property management, but
since this was commercial, she reached out to Frank Bailey from the County for guidance on what
was needed for the project. Mr. Roark clarified that Frank Bailey was with Carroll County Bureau
of Permits and Inspections, and that he would be the one to come out and do inspections. There
was no additional deliberation.

Mr. Joseck called the hearing back to order.

Ms. McCoy made a motion to approve a Request by Hampstead Development, LL.C for a
Conditional Use of a restaurant in the Local Business District at 1365 N. Main Street. Mrs.
Duff seconded the motion. The motion passed with three votes for, no votes against and no
abstentions.

Mrs. Duff made a motion to adjourn. Ms. McCoy seconded the motion. The motion passed and
the hearing was adjourned.

Submitted by: Approved by:
Jim Roark Michael Joseck
Town Manager/Zoning Administrator Vice Chair



